SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 11, 2015
9:05 a. m

9: 05: 03 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

M chael Hanl ey, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel oprment; Heidi Teshner, Director, Adnmnistrative
Services, Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent;
Janmes Cantor, Deputy Attorney General, Departnent of Law
Dave Bl aisdell, Director, Admnistrative Services Division,
Departnment of Law; Richard Svobodny, Deputy Attorney
General, Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law, Catherine
Reardon, Adm nistrative Services Director, Departnent of
Commer ce, Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent .

SUMVARY
SB 27 APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

SB 27 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

FY 16 BUDGET OVERVI EWG:

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT



DEPARTMENT OF LAW
DEPARTMENT OF COMMVERCE, COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C
DEVEL OPMVENT

#sb27
SENATE BI LL NO. 27

"An Act making appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain progr ans, capitali zing funds, maki ng
reappropriations, and nmaking appropriations under art.
| X, sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Al aska,
from the constitutional budget reserve fund; and
providing for an effective date."

9:06: 07 AM

"OVERVI EW FY 16 BUDGET DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY
DEVEL OPVENT

9:06: 07 AM

M CHAEL HANLEY, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY  DEVELOPMENT, di scussed the Power Point, " Al aska
Departnment of Education and Early Developnent, FY2016
Budget Overview' (copy on file).

Comm ssioner Hanley |ooked at slide 5, "Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, FY 2016 Governor Anmended
Budget." He stated that the slide gave the overview in the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED). He
remar ked that DEED was the smallest departnent, aside from
the CGovernor's office. He stated that there were 359 total
enpl oyees, with 126 in the "Coldbelt" who actually run
DEED.

Co-Chair Kelly queried the nunber of students at M.
Edgecunbe Hi gh School. Comm ssioner Hanley responded that
there were approxi mately 400 students at M. Edgecunbe.

Comm ssioner Hanley highlighted slide 6, "Budget by Core
Services." He noted that 80 percent of the DEED budget was
public school funding, which was distributed in a formla
to the state's public schools. He remarked that 14 percent
of the budget was for fiscal accountability, conpliance,
and oversight. He explained that DEED worked wth the
school districts on accountability for the received state

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/11/15 9:05 A M



and federal funds. He stated that 2 percent of the budget
was for school effectiveness prograns, which helped to
provi de coaches, nentors, and other support prograns for
the schools. Lastly, 4 percent of the budget was for active
partnerships, for progranms |ike Best Beginnings and Parents
as Teachers.

Conmi ssioner Hanley addressed slide 7, "Department of
Education and Early Devel opnent, FY 2016 Governor Anended
Budget by Fund Source." The DEED budget was divided into

two conponents: K-12 fornula prograns, $1.4 billion; and
agency operations at $324 nmillion. He noted that $211
mllion of the $324 mllion was federal funds. The only G-

conponent for DEED was the approximately $73 nmillion. The
federal prograns within the budget were title prograns |ike
the free and reduced lunch prograns; services for honel ess
and i npoverished students; and |ow perform ng students. The
bottom of the slide displayed the budget by fund source: 85
percent of the overall budget was G- 13 percent was
federal funds; and 2 percent was other funds that cane from
i nteragency receipts, the Mental Health Trust Board, and
certificate renewal s.

9:11: 01 AM

Comm ssioner Hanley highlighted slide 8, "General Funds
Only." The graph represented the relationship between the
DEED agency and the overall budget. He stressed that 95
percent of the G- only budget was for K-12 formula
progr amns.

Comm ssi oner Hanl ey discussed slide 9, "All Fund Sources by
Line Item" He noted that 94 percent of the funding was
distributed in grants. He remarked that the 4 percent of
other lines were for assessnent contracts for nentors and
coaches. He noted that 2 percent of the budget was for
per sonal servi ces.

Comm ssioner Hanley |ooked at slide 10, "Departnent of
Education and Early Developnment Agency Operations."” He
remarked that the 63 percent of the agency budget was
federal funding through the title prograns. He stressed
that the noney did not necessarily stay wthin the
departnment. The federal funding was considered agency
funds, but nost of the federal funds were distributed to
the districts.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/11/15 9:05 A M



Co-Chair Kelly surmsed that the federal funds were
distributed in the form of grants. Conmm ssioner Hanley
agr eed.

Comm ssioner Hanley highlighted slide 11, "Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, FY 2015 WManagenent Pl an
vs. FY 2016 Governor Amended." He pointed out that the
budget was fornmulated to reflect a $95 mllion reduction.
He noted that the $95 million represented the one-tine
funding from the FY 15 budget. He remarked that it was not
a true "reduction", but rather represented an adjustnment.
He explained that DEED was working extensively in
determning true reductions to the agency and districts. He
noted that there were two permanent full-tinme positions
elimnated, and three non-permanent positions from a
federal program fundi ng.

Co-Chair MacKinnon opined that the full-tinme enploynent
positions were not currently filled. Comm ssioner Hanley
responded that the three non-permanent positions were
conplete, and the other two positions were vacant.

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked for an explanation of the
reduction of the $1.88 mllion in federal receipts.

9:15:13 AM

HEI DI TESHNER, DI RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES,
DEPARTMVENT OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT, did not know
why there was a reductions of $1.88 nillion in federal
recei pts. She agreed to provide further information.

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that it |ooked Ilike the
reduction was in the governor's anended budget.

Comm ssioner Hanley discussed slide 12, "Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, FY 2016 Governor Anended
Budget Hi ghlights":

St udent and School Achi evenent

*($53.7) UG & ($8.0) Federal reduction to renove
one PFT position

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/11/15 9:05 A M



*($100.0) UGF reduction to remove the Al aska
M ner al and Energy Resource Education Fund
(AMEREF) grant funding

*($300.0) UGF reduction to the Alaska Native
Science & Engineering Program (ANSEP) grant
fundi ng

Al aska Lear ni ng Network (AKLN)

*($250.3) UGF reduction to the AKLN program
f undi ng

Early Learni ng Coordi nation

*($50.0) UG- reduction for Best Beginnings grant
f undi ng

*($20.0) UGF reduction for Parents As Teachers
base grant funding

Conmi ssioner Hanley |ooked at slide 13, "Department of
Education and Early Devel opnent, FY 2016 Governor Anended
Budget Hi ghlights":

Pr e- Ki nder garten

*($100.0) UGF reduction for Pre-K grant funding
State Facilities Rent

*+$200.0 UGF one-tine item increase for dual
occupancy in the last three nonths of FY2016

Co- Chair Kelly surmsed that the admnistration was
requiring |ease paynents. Conm ssioner Hanley replied that
there were sone facilities in the State Ofice Building. He
wondered if they were all state facilities. M. Teshner
replied that the I|eases were paid through the public
bui | di ng fund.

Co-Chair Kelly understood that the paynents were not actual
rent paynents. He felt that there could be adjustnments in
adm ni strati on. Comm ssi oner Hanl ey agreed.

Commi ssi oner Hanl ey continued to discuss slide 13:

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/11/15 9:05 A M



Li brary Qperations
*($66.3) UGF reduction to renove one PFT position

*($33.8) UG- reduction to reduce one inter-
library | oan assistant position to half-tinme

*($2,000.0) UGF reduction to the Broadband grant
funding from HB278

9:20: 31 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that the federal governnment
required a high level of broadband, but DEED was only
attenpting to neet the lowest |evel. Conm ssioner Hanley
replied that the federal guidelines had a higher levels
than the base for nost of Al aska.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that Al aska was facing a $3.7
billion deficit. She felt that there would be a recurring
cost in future years. She remarked that there should be a
prioritization of prograns, rather than decreasing each
program a snall anount.

Co-Chair Kelly felt that elimnating vacant positions were
not the best option for reducing the budget. Co-Chair
MacKi nnon agr eed.

Senat or Dunl eavy remarked that the House Finance Conmittee
finalized their operating budget. He anticipated a final
recommendation that would greatly reduce the budget.

9:25: 53 AM

Senator O son addressed the broadband issues, and wondered
how much of the reduction caused a |oss of federal funding.
Comm ssioner Hanley replied that, currently, the governor's
request would have zero inpact on federal funding. He
furthered that the House Finance Commttee renoved all the
funding, but $3.6 mllion was restored. That nunber would
represent approxinmately what the conbination of G- and
federal funding woul d purchase.

Senator O son wondered how the following year's budget
woul d affect the federal funds. Comm ssioner Hanley replied
that the e-rate would be leveraged, if the funds renain
i ntact.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/11/15 9:05 A M



Senator O son wondered why the affectivity was not anal yzed
based on individual progranms, rather than cutting parts of
separate prograns. Comm ssioner Hanley replied that DEED
had conducted an analysis of the programaffectivity.

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered if DEED was naking an effort
to create public/private partnerships fore. Conm ssioner
Hanley replied that those progranms represent private
part ner shi ps.

9:30:12 AM

Comm ssioner Hanley discussed slide 14, "Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, FY 2016 Governor Anended
Budget Highlights":

Online Wth Libraries (OA)
*($42.0) UG reduction to reduce funding for one
University of Al aska position to half-tine
Al aska Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education
(ACPE) ;

Program Adm ni strati on and Operations
*$13,802.0 I/A Receipts (Oher) for budget
structure nodification to represent ACPE costs
paid by ASLC
*($13,802.0) ACPE Receipts (OQher) for transfer
of receipts from ACPE to the new ASLC
appropriation

Al aska Student Loan Corporation (ASLC); Loan Servicing

*+$13,802.0 ACPE Receipts (OQther) for transfer of
recei pts fromACPE to the new ASLC appropriation

Comm ssioner Hanley highlighted slide 15, "Departnment of
Educati on and Early Devel opnent, FY2016 Capital Budget":

School Construction Gants —Total $4, 604.4 UGF

—Ki valina K-12 Replacenent School -new facility
desi gn, $4,604.4 UGF

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/11/15 9:05 A M



9:33:12 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy queried the origin of the $63 mllion for
the Kivalina School. Conmm ssioner Hanley replied that the
total cost of the school was between $63 million and $68
mllion. The Northwest Arctic Borough School District had
20 percent local contribution, so the state's share was
approximately $48 mllion.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if the school was designed to be
$63 mllion, or if the budget was only an approxi mation.
Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the figure was based on
design plans, which followng specific DEED statutes and
regul ations. There were various criteria that included
square footage, and other aspects. He noted that the
original proposal was $100 nillion, and DEED worked
extensively with the district to determne the final budget
cost .

Senator Dunleavy asked how nmany students were currently
enrolled in the Kivalina School. Conm ssioner Hanley
replied that there were 130 students. He furthered that it
was one of the few schools that had shown slight increases
to the student population. The current school was built for
65 students.

Senator Dunleavy queried the balance in the school
construction account. Comm ssioner Hanley wondered if
Senator Dunleavy referred to the Regional Educationa
Att endance Area (REAA) account.

Senator Dunleavy queried the balance in the REAA account
Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the Kivalina was not a
part of the REAA The school required a specific
appropriation.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked if there were any construction funds
in other categories for total school <construction. M.
Teshner replied that there was approximately $40 million in
the school construction fund, and she would provide the
exact avail able balance at a | ater date.

Senator Bishop asked if the road construction was included

in the $63 mllion. Conmi ssioner Hanley stated that it was
not i ncl uded.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/11/15 9:05 A M



9:37: 09 AM

Senator dson wondered iif the Kasialie Case included
ancillary costs related to building a school. Comr ssioner
Hanley replied that the case did not include ancillary
costs. The case examned the top five projects on the CP
list, and determined that they would be naned in the
Kasialie Case. He furthered that prior to the settlenent,
t he Kivalina School was the top school.

Senator O son stated that it was his understanding that
there were considerations for ancillary costs to the
buil ding of the school. Conm ssioner Hanley stated that in
the year that it took to settle the case, an anount or
price was not negoti at ed.

Senator O son asked if there was a penalty to the state for
not abiding to the Kasialie Case in a tinely nanner.
Conmi ssi oner Hanl ey responded t hat t he settl enent
determned that the state would fund the school in the
current year. He stated that the case would not be
reopened, as long as the school was funded in a tinely
manner. He felt that there was a noral and | egal obligation
to honor the settlenment. He did not believe the state would
benefit from depositing noney into an account that could
not be accessed for nany years.

9:40: 55 AM

Co-Chair Kelly felt that $63 million for a school and a $35
mllion for a road that would only benefit 130 students was
absurd.

Senator Dunleavy estimated that the cost per student was
$484, 615 per student, which was $16,153 per student over
thirty vyears - not including the operating costs.
Comm ssi oner Hanley concurred that the cost of the schoo
was hugely expensive. He remarked that the cost per student
in the rural schools was nore expensive than the urban
school s.

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that she felt a subconmttee
should be forned to examne how schools were being
constructed, and perhaps streamine sone features in order
to save costs. She referred to design and devel opnent as
an area to |l ook for ways to decrease costs.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/11/15 9:05 A M



Comm ssioner Hanley noted that there was a study in the
previ ous year that was tasked to exam ne the benefits and
di sadvantages of a prototypical school design. He study
woul d be rel eased in June.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that the study was awarded to
the engineers that would benefit from the individual
design. She expected that the study would suggest that
every school nust be a standal one project, so the engi neers
may not consider Alaska's interests or the cost of the
st andal one projects.

Senator Hoffman noted a provision from a bill in the
previous year, and echoed concerns with the high cost of
construction in rural Al aska. Comm ssioner Hanley concurred
t hat Senator Hof fman's conments were correct.

9:48: 07 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked Senator Hoffrman to restate his
guesti on.

Senator Hoffnan wondered if the fornula for urban schools
woul d be refl ected in t he rur al school f or mul as.
Comm ssioner Hanley replied in the affirmative.

Senat or Hof fnman comrented that the Kasialie Case settlenent
was specific. He noted that the Kivalina School was the
last on the list, but it did not nmean that the state would
quit funding the construction rural schools.

Senator Dunleavy opined that a larger commttee should be
formed to |look at overall -education policy. He renarked
that construction was over a $1 billion operation cost
item He felt that issue was not specific to the Kivalina
School, but the cost of education was extrenely costly. He
remarked that the focus should be on providing a quality
education with decreasing funds.

Co-Chair Kelly felt that the legislature had lost its right
to appropriate funds. He furthered that the | egislature did
not have to fund the schools according to the court's
settlement. He felt that the subcommttee should not only
address school funding, but the rights of the |egislature.

Senator Dunleavy shared that there nay be an additional
$220 mllion for education in Ketchikan.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/11/15 9:05 A M



9:53: 38 AM

Senator O son remarked that rural education was expensive.
He furthered that Al aska did not want federal overreach. He
noted that there was a mne near Kivalina, which provided
taxes and revenues to the state. He declared that the
hesitancy to educate children in Kivalina was not unlike
t he col oni al days.

Co-Chair Kelly announced that the people of Kivalina had
subservice rights that he did not enjoy. He felt that the
peopl e of Kivalina had many rights that other people in the
state did not have. He said that the people of Kivalina did
not "necessarily need a school, they need an education.” He
remarked that there should be noney in distance |earning.

Senator dson felt that the courts were involved in order
to determne what the communities were constitutionally
assur ed.

Vice-Chair Mcciche felt that the decisions were not
| ogical. He remarked that schools in urban areas were built
based on popul ation density, not because another part of
the state had a school. He felt that the courts were not
logical in determning that a school should be built in a
smal | er popul ated area.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that there should be quality
education in rural Al aska.

9:57:56 AM

Commi ssi oner Hanl ey continued to discuss slide 15:
School Major Maintenance Grants —Total $13,491.2 UG-
($3,491.2 UGF di rect appropriation and a
reappropriation not to exceed $10, 000. 0)

—Petersburg Mddle/H gh School Boiler Repair,
$24.5 UGF

—Andrew K Denpbski K-12 School Renovation, Nul ato
$10, 637. 7 UGF

—Nonme City School District —-Districtw de Lighting
Repl acerment, $192.8 UGF

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/11/15 9:05 A M



—Bet hel Canpus Boil er Repl acenent, $2,636.1 UG-

Co- Chair MacKinnon remarked that the legislature wanted
qual ity education for Al askan students. She noted that the
court determned that the legislature nust allocated $38
mllion to a school. She surmsed that the noney could be
allocated to Kivalina, and the noney would stay there for
several years. The commttee could, however, set that noney
aside with the plaintiffs and nove forward on other
mai nt enance projects.

Senator O son |ooked at slide 15, and wondered what woul d
happen if the aerospace reappropriation was not approved.
Comm ssioner Hanley replied that the first lest would be
approved, and only part of the second project.

Senator O son wondered if there would be enough noney to
being the nmaintenance of Nulato. Conm ssioner Hanley
responded that there would be enough noney to begin Nul ato.

Senator Dunleavy remarked that there were 329 positions
authorized within DEED, and queried the recomrendations if
there were a 7 percent or 10 percent reducti on.
Conmi ssioner Hanley replied that there were conversations
about further reductions. He stated that nost of the
Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education (CPE) positions
operated under receipts, so reducing a position there would
have very little gain for the state. He stressed that he
wanted to protect M. Edgecunbe, but would | ook at reducing
the CGoldbelt and library archive nuseuns. He stated that
there would be a reduction of services in support for the
school district. He would work directly with the division
directors.

Senator Dunleavy queried the npbst expensive progranms in
DEED that did not directly address the core mssion.
Comm ssi oner Hanl ey responded that there were sone
partnerships that were not core to the K-12 mssion. He
stressed, however, that they were very valuable prograns.
He announced that Alaska Native Science and Engineering
Program (ANSEP) was very expensive program but felt that
it was not a core mssion. He announced that Best
Begi nni ngs was expensive, but not core to the mission. He
stressed that they were valuable prograns. He stated that
there was a $2 million Pre-K program which had not yet
expanded. He felt that the mssion should fall below

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 03/11/15 9:05 A M



ki ndergarten. He stated that there was a nentor program
that supported new teachers, and he felt that the program
was core to the mssion. The program had shown results in
both retention and recruitnment of teachers, as well as
student i nprovenent.

10: 06: 23 AM

Senator Dunl eavy wondered if M. Edgecunbe fell under the
core mssion of DEED. Commi ssioner Hanley replied in the
affirmative. He furthered that residential schools were
core to the mssion of DEED. He furthered that those
school s were trenendous residential prograns.

Senator Dunleavy felt that the conmmttee should reexam ne
the education policy. He noted that the students at M.
Edgecunbe would be able to go to a different school, if M.
Edgecunbe were to close. He stressed that Alaska did not
have the Iluxury of determning the benefits of each
program He remarked that there was a vast deficit in the
state, so the conversations needed to occur imediately. He
felt that there woul d be reductions of prograns.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered what anount of the federal
funding went directly to the schools. M. Teshner replied
that 90 was delivered to schools through grants, and 5
percent was delivered through contracts.

10: 09: 59 AM
AT EASE

10:16: 10 AM
RECONVENED

"OVERVI EW FY 16 BUDGET DEPARTMENT OF LAW

10: 16: 43 AM

JAVES CANTOR, DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW i ntroduced hinsel f.

Co-Chair Kelly stated that he would be |eaving the neeting
early.

DAVE BLAI SDELL, DI RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES DI VI SI ON

DEPARTMENT OF LAW discussed slide 4 of the PowerPoint,
"Departnment of Law Senate Finance Conmittee Departnent

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 03/11/15 9:05 A M



Overview' (copy on file). He stated that the governor's
budget was $84.443 nillion, which was a reduction of
approximately $7 mllion from the FY 15 budget. The
reduction was in overall funds, with $5.4 mllion in the
civil division; $1.4 mllion in the crimnal division; and
$172,000 in admnistrative services.

M. Blaisdell |ooked at slide 5, "Potential Inpacts of
Client Agency Budgets":

34 percent of the Departnment’s budget is funded from

sour ces ot her t han undesi gnat ed gener al f und.
Substantially all of those funds are from other
agenci es.

As other departnents draw down or elimnate prograns,
the anmount of legal support required may be reduced

However, past experience indicates that program
elimnation or downsizing generally has a short-term
uptick in level of legal work that is necessary.

-Legal efforts required by other agencies are not
predictably parallel to reductions -an area of
concern is that sister agencies may “cut corners”
when seeking Law s expertise, potentially I|eading
to greater legal trouble in the future.

M. Blaisdell addressed slide 6, "Budget Conparison: UG
Only." The Cvil Division saw an 18.9 percent reduction,
which factored a $2 nmillion nulti-year appropriation in
2015. The Crimnal Dwvision had a 4.7 percent reduction.
The Administrative Services saw a 7.3 percent reduction.
There was a total reduction of 11.6 percent for FY 16. The
| argest piece of G- were oil, gas, and mning; child
protection; |abor and state affairs; and natural resources.

M. Blaisdell |ooked at slide 7, "FY 14 Criminal D vision
Actuals."” He stated that personal services was the |argest
cost driver at 84 percent. The core services for the
Departnment of Law was 10 percent of the budget. He
furthered that the travel was divided between enployee and
non- enpl oyee, because over half of the travel budget was
for non-enployee travel as related to noving witnesses to
and from court.

10: 21: 26 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 03/11/15 9:05 A M



M. Blaisdell discussed slide 8, "FY 14 Civil Division
Actuals." He stated that adding the outside council to the
per sonal services percentage totaled approximately 85
percent of the budget. He noted the 10 percent for the core
services chargeback. He stressed that nost of the
reducti ons woul d be from personal services.

M. Bl ai sdel | addr essed slide 9, "FY 16 Budget
Devel opnent."” He noted that in the previous year for one-
tine items there was $5.315 nmllion. He explained that
there was $15 mllion from the Mental Health Budget for
training dollars. The $5.3 mllion included $3.8 nillion
for outside council for oil, gas, and mning matters; and
$1.5 mllion for gas line activity. The $2 mllion was a
mul ti-year appropriation for the Flint Hlls litigation.

There were statewde itens that included the automatic
heal thcare and salary increases, totaling $1.318 million.
The adjusted base for the Departnment of Law was $89. 405
mllion

10: 26: 57 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if those elimnated positions
were currently filled. M. Blaisdell replied that the
departnment had recently inplenented a policy to keep sone
positions available. He stated that the Crimnal Division
had 15 open positions, but 14 of those positions were
filled in the current year. The Civil Division had 9 vacant
positions, but 8 of those positions were filled in the
previ ous year.

M. Cantor furthered that there would be sonme filled
positions reduced. He remarked that there were sone shifts
in positions.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stressed that she did not want anyone to
|l ose their jobs. She wondered if there was a strategy to
bal ance the positions. M. Cantor responded that the
departnment was currently adjusting the positions.

Co- Chair Kelly handed the gavel to Co-Chair MacKi nnon

M. Blaisdell discussed slide 10, FY 15 to FY 16 Departnent
Conparison." The slide showed a $7 mllion reduction in the
budget, with $2.3 mllion from personal services. The $4.4
mllion from contractual services was from a one-tinme prior
year appropriation.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 03/11/15 9:05 A M



M . Bl ai sdel | addressed slide 11, " Per sonal Servi ces
Distribution.” He remarked that there would be a | oss of 19
positions, with 10 in the Cvil Dwvision and 9 in the
Crimnal Division.

10: 31: 50 AM

Senator O son wondered how the $3.4 mllion for outside
council for oil and gas conpared to years past. M.
Bl ai sdel | replied that the nunber was substantially higher
four or five years prior. The nunber depended on the
current cases. The nunber showed a reduction associated
with the Strategic Reconfiguration Case, which did not
require rmuch outside council.

Senator O son wondered if the outside council was from
outside of the state. M. Blaisdell replied that there was
some council from both in the state and from outside the
st ate.

Senator Hoffrman |ooked at slide 7, and wondered if the
travel included the travel of state troopers. M. Cantor
responded that the budget did not include state trooper
travel .

Senator Hoffrman wondered who would cover the costs of
soneone who needed to travel from Goose Creek to Bethel.
M. Blaisdell deferred to M. Svobodny

RI CHARD  SVOBODNY, DEPUTY  ATTORNEY  GENERAL, CRI M NAL
Dl VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF LAW explained that individuals in
custody that were transferred for trial from Goose Creek to
Bet hel would be covered by the Departnent of Public Safety
(DPS). He stated that the witness travel would be covered
by the Departnent of Law.

Senator Hoffrman wondered if the individuals could be
transferred under contract wth soneone wth a |ess
salaried position. M. Svobodny replied that he did not
know t he answer.

Senator Hoffman reiterated that there may be other areas
that coul d reduce personnel costs.

10: 36: 13 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 03/11/15 9:05 A M



Senat or Bi shop wondered if nobst cases were included in the
budget. M. Cantor replied that the state was not backing
away from the cases, but would continue to work with people
outside the section. The departnent was constantly working
with the best |lawers for particular cases. There was a
reduction from an Endangered Species Act position, but
there was still expertise in the departnent. He stated that
a statehood defense positions was reduced, because it was a
reemmant of the days when there was a section called
" St at ehood Defense."” The caseload would still be nanaged in
the sanme way. The |RS2477 was conplicated, because the
funding was established four years prior through the
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), which would pay for
the research of the trails. He stressed that the case nust
nove forward with the entire unit.

Vice-Chair Mcciche remarked that nost law firnms had few
upper |level partners, and many |ower |evel enployees. He
wondered if the Departnment of Law had a higher proportion
of higher level staff. M. Cantor replied that the
departnment had steps and grades within the attorneys in the
departnment. The Attorney 5 position had fewer than the
Attorney 3 position.

10: 41: 17 AM
AT EASE

10: 41: 31 AM
RECONVENED

"OVERVI EW FY 16 BUDGET DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY
AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT

10: 42: 14 AM

CATHERI NE REARDON, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVI CES DI RECTOR,
DEPARTMENT OF COWMERCE, COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPNMENT
(DCCED), discussed the PowerPoint, "Departnment Overview
Presented to Senate Finance Commttee" (copy on file). She
shared that the departnment has a positive effect on
Al askans, and their daily lives. She understood, however,
that the department nmust see how it inpacts the over $3
billion deficit.

Ms. Reardon highlighted slide 2, "Departnment Organization."”
She shared that the bottom represented the six core

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 03/11/15 9:05 A M



divisions and the six corporate entities. The departnent
enpl oyed 578 Al askans.

Ms. Reardon |ooked at slide 3, "Departnent Budget." She
stated that UG- was only 17 percent of the DCCED budget
She remarked that the departnent represented a very snal
portion, 2.37 percent, of the entire state's G- budget. She
noted that there was a 3.9 percent cut in the overall
budget, 12.3 percent of that cut canme from the GF budget.
She pointed out that the percentage cuts included an
addition of a significant cost to the departnent: the cost
of regulating marijuana. The 12.3 percent cut was outlined,
whil e the departnment absorbed $1.5 million of new costs for
the effective regulation of marijuana, therefore the actual
cuts in other areas were nore substantial than they my
appear .

Ms. Reardon addressed slide 4, "Summary of Budget Changes.™
She noted that the plan renoved the followng one-tine
itens:

AEA - Reverse prior-year multi-year projects: Data
Col | ection, Affordabl e Energy

AGDC - Reverse operating costs previously included in
| anguage secti on.

DCRA , DED - Reverse prior-year one-tine-item naned
recipient grants (Kawerak for D onmede Essential Air
Service, Bering Sea Fishermen, Alaska Mrine Safety
Education Associ ation, Ilisagvik Coll ege, Al aska
Native Arts Marketing)

CBPL, AIDEA - Reverse Fiscal Notes - SB23 Al DEA LNG
HB4 AGDC, SB138 AGDC, HB328 Massage Therapists, HB160
Athletic Trainers, HB361 Behavior Analysts, HB32 Lines
of Business on a Business License

RCA — Renobve prior-year |anguage item for the Railbelt
i ndependent electric utilities system determ nation

Ms. Reardon highlighted slide 5, "Summary of Budget
Changes." She noted the changes in the adjusted base to
wor k in progress;

Unal | ocat ed reducti on

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 03/11/15 9:05 A M



CBPL - Fiscal Note Year 2 - Board/Licensing of Massage
Ther api sts

DCRA / DED - Restore naned recipient grants (Kawerak
for D onmede Essenti al Air Servi ce, Bering Sea
Fi shernmen, Al aska Marine Safety Educati on Associ ation
I I'isagvi k Col |l ege, Al aska Native Arts Marketing)

DCRA - Transfer nanmed recipient grants previously
funded in the Capital budget (Mrine Exchange of
Al aska, Alaska Air Carriers — Medallion Foundati on)

Al DEA - Project Managenent, Legal and Project Support
Servi ces, Building Mintenance

AEA - Milti-Year Emerging Energy Technol ogy Fund Data
Col l ection - FY2016 to FY2018

AGDC - Restore operating costs for FY2016 previously
i ncl uded as | anguage

RCA - Delete Anmerican Reinvestnment and Recovery Act
(ARRA) funding no | onger avail able

10: 48: 01 AM

Ms. Reardon | ooked at slide 6, "Summary of Budget Changes.™
She noted that the slide was a work in progress.

Ms. Reardon discussed slide 7, "Summary of Budget Changes.™
She |looked at the departnent's reductions, which were
nostly in the G- budget:

DAS - Reduce personal services, elimnate vacant
positions

AEA / AIDEA - Reduce personal services for AEA staff
i n Al DEA conponent

Al DEA - Reduce building maintenance request to
estimated actual s

ASM - Reduce Al aska Seaf ood Marketing Institute

DED - Renpbve nanmed recipient grant for Al aska Native
Arts Marketing

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 03/11/15 9:05 A M



DED - Reduce econom c devel opnent activities

DED - Reduce tourism marketing activities and
contracts

Co- Chair MacKinnon extended a "Happy Birthday" to the
conmi ttee assistant, Doni ece CGott.

SB 27 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
10: 50: 54 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:50 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 03/11/15 9:05 A M



